
 

 

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 

will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given 

below. 

Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 

Members: 

 
City Personnel: 

 

 
Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Monday, June 3, 2019 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom – Stoughton Utilities (600 S 4th St, Stoughton WI 53589)  
Lisa Reeves (Chair), Matt Bartlett (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Thomas Majewski and Mayor 
Timothy Swadley (ex-officio member) 

Director Gillingham 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Call to Order 
 

 

2 Approval of the Monday, April 1, 2019 Personnel Committee meeting minutes 
 

3 Election of Chair 
 

4 Election of Vice Chair 
 

5 Set meeting date & times 
 

6 Communications/Updates 
 

7 Discussion and possible action regarding updated E-Mail & Electronic Communications 
Policy 

 

8 Discussion and possible action regarding changes to Finance Assistant Director position 
description 

 
 

9 Discussion and possible action regarding Finance Treasurer position description 
 

10 Discussion and possible action regarding Parks & Recreation Troll Beach Lifeguard 
position description 

 

11 Future Agenda Items 
 

 Accrued Sick Leave/Retirement 

 Work rules update and on-call status 

 Email/Electronic vs paper paystubs 

 Timesheet Entry 
 

12 Adjournment 
 

 

** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or 
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises 
responsibility. 
 

If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.  
 

NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
NOTE:  For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m.  If you need to enter 
City Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 





 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given 


below. 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 


Members: 


 
City Personnel: 


 


 
Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Monday, June 3, 2019 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom – Stoughton Utilities (600 S 4th St, Stoughton WI 53589)  
Lisa Reeves (Chair), Matt Bartlett (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Thomas Majewski and Mayor 
Timothy Swadley (ex-officio member) 


Director Gillingham 


 


 


 


 


 


 


1 Call to Order 
 


 


2 Approval of the Monday, April 1, 2019 Personnel Committee meeting minutes 
 


3 Election of Chair 
 


4 Election of Vice Chair 
 


5 Set meeting date & times 
 


6 Communications/Updates 
 


7 Discussion and possible action regarding updated E-Mail & Electronic Communications 
Policy 


 


8 Discussion and possible action regarding changes to Finance Assistant Director position 
description 


 
 


9 Discussion and possible action regarding Finance Treasurer position description 
 


10 Discussion and possible action regarding Parks & Recreation Troll Beach Lifeguard 
position description 


 


11 Future Agenda Items 
 


 Accrued Sick Leave/Retirement 


 Work rules update and on-call status 


 Email/Electronic vs paper paystubs 


 Timesheet Entry 
 


12 Adjournment 
 


 


** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or 
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises 
responsibility. 
 


If you are disabled and in need of assistance, please call 873-6677 prior to this meeting.  
 


NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 
NOTE:  For security reasons, the front door of the City Hall Building will be locked after 4:30 p.m.  If you need to enter 
City Hall after that time, please use the Fifth Street entrances. 








 
 
 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, April 1, 2019 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom – Stoughton 
 
 


Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Matt Bartlett (Vice-Chair), Thomas Majewski, Sid Boersma, Mayor Swadley, and Director 
Gillingham  
Also in Attendance: Chief Leck 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. 
 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the Thursday, March 14, 2019 Personnel Committee meeting 


Motion to approve Majewski, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 


3. Communications 
Director Gillingham updated committee members on a grievance that was filed. 
Director Gillingham updated on a possible workers Comp claim that CVMIC may deny. 
Library Director, James Ramsey, starting his position tomorrow. Richard MacDonald is spending this week 
showing him the ropes. 
Senior Center Volunteer Coordinator- offer extended but declined. Started a second recruitment. Reminded 
committee members about the loss of Bryant foundation funding to take Volunteer Program Coordinator from 
19hr/week to 32hr/week. But Director McGlynn has been able to find funds for the remainder of 2019 to keep 
the position at 32 hours.   
Update of the status of recruiting & hiring for the month of March. 
Hire of three new Volunteer Fire Fighters. 
Work Rules update on re-write status. 
 


4. Discussion and possible action regarding Workers Comp Benefit – Elimination Period  
Director Gillingham informed the committee that there was discrepancy in the way that the Utility Department 
handles time off due to injury before workers comp begins paying. Utilities does not pay the employee for those 
first three days off like all other City departments do. She also, stated that other Cities are split on whether they 
pay or do not. There was some discussion.  
Motion Majewski to approve Utilities employees be handled the same as the City employees and be paid for 
the first three days, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 
Reeves asked how the workers comp cases were processed and Director Gillingham explained that Human 
Resources & Risk Management handles them along with CVMIC. 
 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding Non-DOT and DOT Drug & Alcohol Policy 


It was explained by Director Gillingham that several employees had approached her about the use of CBD oil. 
She stated that the City does not have a specific CBD oil policy and it is not mentioned in the Drug & Alcohol 
Policy as it is fairly new. There was some discussion regarding the new Non-DOT and DOT Drug & Alcohol Policy 
put forth by Director Gillingham.  Director Gillingham asked that the committee adopt the policy which includes 
the use of CBD oil. 
Motion by Boersma to approve, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 


6. Review list of identified safety sensitive positions in Regards to the DOT & NON-DOT Drug & Alcohol 
Policy 
Director Gillingham read the definition of “safety sensitive functions”.  She stated that the portion that states 


that “any position that is responsible for his or her own safety or the safety of others “applies to all positions 


within the City and as such all position should be considered safety sensitive 


Motion by Reeves to consider all positions within the City safety sensitive, second Boersma, Approved 5-0 


 







 


 


7. Discussion and possible action regarding three Public Works position descriptions 
Director Gillingham informed the committee that there were not position description for these three seasonal 
positions and asked that the newly created position descriptions be approved by Personnel. There was some 
discussion. 
Motion by Boersma to approve, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 


8. Discussion and possible action regarding eleven Parks & Recreation position descriptions 
Director Gillingham informed the committee that there had never been position description for these seasonal 
positions either and asked that they be approved by Personnel. There was some discussion. 
Motion by Boersma to approve, second Reeves, Approved 5-0 
 


9. Discussion and possible action regarding two Senior Center position descriptions 
Director Gillingham stated that after completing the performance evaluations, director McGlynn approached 
had approached her about making a few minor changes to the two Senior Center position descriptions.  
Motion by Reeves to approve, second Bartlett, Approved 5-0 
 


10. Discussion and possible action regarding Library Substitute position description 
Director Gillingham stated that there were minor changes to the Library Substitute position description, one of 
them removing the probationary period due to the fact that the City is an at will employer and no probationary 
period is needed. Also, removed is the college degree which is not required for this position. 
Motion by Bartlett to approve, second Majewski, Approved 5-0 
 


11. Future Agenda Items 
 


 Work rules status update – last meeting on 4/3/19 


 Email/Electronic vs paper paystubs – will be talking to Director Friedl 


 Timesheet Entry – Lisa & Pat working on this. Leck says the PD is ready to go. 
 


Motion to adjourn Boersma, second Majewski, Approved 5-0. Meeting adjourned 6:45pm. 


 








CITY OF STOUGHTON STANDARDS OF PROHIBIITED COMMUNICATIONS FOR STOUGHTON ELECTED OR 
APPOINTED OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES. 
  
Electronic media (including Tablets, Cell Phones and Laptops provided to individuals and departments) 
cannot be used for knowingly transmitting, retrieving, or storing any communications that are:    
  


1. Discriminatory or harassing;    
2. Derogatory to any individual or group;  
3. Obscene as defined in Wis. Stats. § 944.21;   
4. Defamatory or threatening; or  
5. Engaging in any purpose that is illegal or contrary to the City's policy or business 


interests.    
   
I have read the Common Council Computer Policy and the Addendum, accept the device and agree to 
abide by the policy.  
  
  
  
__________________________________  _______________________ 
 Signature      Date 
  







E-MAIL AND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS POLICIES 
EMPLOYEE NOTICE 
 
As an employee of the Governing Unit of City of Stoughton (the "Governing Unit"), I recognize and 
understand that the Governing Unit's electronic communication systems are provided for conducting 
the Governing Unit's business and therefore subject to records request.   
 
However, Governing Unit policy does permit some limited, occasional, or incidental personal use of the 
equipment and services under certain circumstances. I understand that all equipment, software, 
messages and files are the exclusive property of the Governing Unit.  I agree not to use the electronic 
communication systems in a way that is disruptive, offensive, or harmful to others or to the Governing 
Unit. I agree not to use pass codes, access a file or retrieve any stored communication other than where 
authorized.  I agree not to copy, send or receive confidential information without prior authorization 
from my immediate supervisor and the Department Head. 
 
I am aware that the Governing Unit reserves and will exercise the right to review, audit, intercept, 
access and disclose all matters on the Governing Unit's electronic communications systems at any time. I 
am aware that the Governing Unit may exercise these rights with or without employee notice, and that 
such access may occur during or after working hours.  I am aware that use of a log-in name and 
password do not guarantee confidentiality, guarantee privacy or restrict the Governing Unit's right to 
access electronic communications.  I am aware that violations of this policy may subject me to 
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge from employment, as well as civil and/or criminal 
liability. 
 
I acknowledge that I have read and that I understand the Governing Unit's policies regarding email and 
electronic communications, and have been afforded an opportunity to ask questions regarding the 
policy.  I also acknowledge that I have read and that I understand this notice. 
 
 
_____________________________________  ________________  
Signature of Employee    Date 
 
_____________________________________  ________________  
Signature of Supervisor     Date 
 
Copy for Employee 
  







E-MAIL AND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS POLICIES 
EMPLOYEE NOTICE 
 
As an employee of the Governing Unit of City of Stoughton (the "Governing Unit"), I recognize and 
understand that the Governing Unit's electronic communication systems are provided for conducting 
the Governing Unit's business and therefore subject to records request.   
 
However, Governing Unit policy does permit some limited, occasional, or incidental personal use of the 
equipment and services under certain circumstances. I understand that all equipment, software, 
messages and files are the exclusive property of the Governing Unit.  I agree not to use the electronic 
communication systems in a way that is disruptive, offensive, or harmful to others or to the Governing 
Unit. I agree not to use pass codes, access a file or retrieve any stored communication other than where 
authorized.  I agree not to copy, send or receive confidential information without prior authorization 
from my immediate supervisor and the Department Head. 
 
I am aware that the Governing Unit reserves and will exercise the right to review, audit, intercept, 
access and disclose all matters on the Governing Unit's electronic communications systems at any time. I 
am aware that the Governing Unit may exercise these rights with or without employee notice, and that 
such access may occur during or after working hours.  I am aware that use of a log-in name and 
password do not guarantee confidentiality, guarantee privacy or restrict the Governing Unit's right to 
access electronic communications.  I am aware that violations of this policy may subject me to 
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge from employment, as well as civil and/or criminal 
liability. 
 
I acknowledge that I have read and that I understand the Governing Unit's policies regarding email and 
electronic communications, and have been afforded an opportunity to ask questions regarding the 
policy.  I also acknowledge that I have read and that I understand this notice. 
 
 
_____________________________________  ________________  
Signature of Employee    Date 
 
_____________________________________  ________________  
Signature of Supervisor     Date 
 
Copy for Employer 
  







POLICY REGARDING ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF SPECIAL MEETING NOTICES  
  
   
The mayor or Council president may call special meetings by written notice to each Council member and 
the mayor. The notice shall be delivered to all Council members either personally, electronically to those 
who have consented to electronic delivery of notices from the City, or left at their usual abode, at least 
twenty-four (24) hours before the meeting, unless for good cause a twenty-four hour notice is 
impossible or impractical. In that case, a shorter notice may be given, but the notice may not at any time 
be provided less than six (6) hours in advance of the meeting. The notice shall specify the time, place, 
and purpose of the meeting. Attendance by any Council member is a waiver of any defect of notice.1  
  
 
NAME: __________________________________________________________________  
  
  
EMAIL ADDRESS: ___________________________________________________________  
  
  
I hereby consent, as authorized by my signature on this document, to receiving notice of special 
meetings, via electronic means, to the email address noted above.  
 
  
 ________________________________________   _______________________ 
Signature        Date 
  
---  
1Like regular meetings, notice to the public and news media must also be given in accordance with the 
requirements of open meetings law.  
 








1.6 PERSONAL USE 


1.6. A. Except as otherwise provided, electronic media and services, including e-mail, are 


provided by the City for employees' business use during City time. Limited, occasional, or 


incidental use of electronic media (sending or receiving) for personal non-business purposes is 


permitted as set forth below: 


i. Personal use is limited to breaks, lunch or immediately before/after work; 


ii. Personal use must not interfere with the productivity of the employee or his/her 


coworkers; 


iii. Personal use does not involve any prohibited activity (see Section 1.6.A-J); 


iv. Personal use does not consume system resources or storage capacity on an 


ongoing basis; 


v. Personal use does not involve large file transfers or otherwise deplete system 


resources . available for business purposes. 


1.6. B. City telephones and cellular phones are to be used for City business. However, brief, 


limited personal use is permitted during the work day. Personal long distance calls are only 


permitted with the use of a personal 1-800 calling card, or with the understanding that such 


calls must be reimbursed to the City. 


1.6. C. Employees should not have any expectation of .privacy with respect to personal use of the 


City's electronic media or services, or with respect to personal e-mail sent or received on the City's 


e-mail system. Employees should delete personal messages as soon as they are read or replied to. 


Employees should not store copies of the personal messages they have sent. Because e-mail is not 


private, employees should avoid sending personal messages that are sensitive or confidential. 


1.7 PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES/COMMUNICATIONS  


Employees may not use the City's e-mail system or other electronic media for: 


1.7. A. Personal business or entertainment on. City time (e.g. sports pools, games, shopping, 


correspondence or other non-business-related items/documents), except as otherwise allowed 


under Section 1.5.A; 


1.7. B. Engaging in illegal, fraudulent, or malicious activities; 


1.7. C. Engaging in activities that are contrary to the City's policies or business interests; 


1.7. D. Engaging in the unlawful use of the e-mail system as set forth in Section 947.0125 of 


the Wisconsin Statutes (Unlawful use of computerized communication systems); 


1.7. E. Knowingly transmitting, retrieving, or storing offensive, disruptive, obscene (as 


defined in Wis. Stats. § 944.21), defamatory, or threatening material. Materials which are 


considered offensive include, but are not limited to: any materials which contain sexual 


implications, racial slurs, gender-specific comments, or any other comment that offensively 


addresses someone's age, race, creed, color, sex, ancestry, religious or political beliefs, marital 


status, national origin or disability; 


1.7. F. Annoying or harassing other individuals; 


2 







1.7. G. Using another individual's account or identity without explicit authorization; 


1.7. H. Attempting to test, circumvent, or defeat security or auditing systems, without prior 


authorization; 


1.7. I. Accessing, retrieving or reading any e-mail messages sent to other individuals, without 


prior authorization from the Department Head; or 


1.7. J. Permitting any unauthorized individual to access the City's e-mail system or social media 


accounts. 


For the protection, integrity and security of the City's system, electronic media shall not be used to 


download or transfer software, unless authorized by the Director of Planning & Development. 


1.8 ACCESS TO EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATIONS 


,1.8. A. Electronic information created and/or communicated by an employee using e-mail, word 


processing, utility programs, spreadsheets, voice mail, telephones, Internet and bulletin board 


systems, desktop faxes, and similar electronic media may be accessed and monitored by the City. 


The City respects its employees' desire to work without surveillance. However, the City reserves 


and intends to exercise the right, at its discretion, to review, monitor, intercept, access and disclose 


all messages created, received or sent over the electronic communication systems for any purpose 


including, but not limited to: cost analysis; resource allocation; optimum technical management of 


information resources; and detecting use which is in violation of City policies or may constitute 


illegal activity. Disclosure will not be made except when necessary to enforce the policy, as 


permitted or required under the law, or for business purposes. 


1.8. B. Any such monitoring, intercepting and accessing shall observe any and all 


confidentiality regulations under federal and state laws. 


1.9 SECURITY/APPROPRIATE USE 


1.9. A. Employees must respect the confidentiality of other individuals' electronic 


communications. Except in cases in which explicit authorization has been granted by the 


Department Head, employees are prohibited from engaging in, or attempting to engage in: 


i. Monitoring or intercepting the files or electronic communications of other 


employees or third parties; 


ii. Hacking or obtaining access to systems or accounts they are not authorized to use; 


iii. Using other people's log-ins or passwords; and 


iv. Breaching, testing, or monitoring computer or network security measures. 


1.9. B. No e-mail or other electronic communications can be sent that attempt to hide the 


identity of the sender or represent the sender as someone else. 


1.9. C. Electronic media and services should not be used in a manner that is likely to cause 


network congestion or significantly hamper the ability of other people to access and use the 


system: 


1.9. D. Anyone obtaining electronic access to other organizations', business', companies', 


municipalities' or individuals' materials must respect all copyrights and cannot copy, retrieve, 


modify, or forward copyrighted materials except as permitted by the copyright owner. 


3 







1.9. E. Employees must understand that the unauthorized use or independent installation of non-


standard software or data may cause computers and networks to function erratically, improperly, 


or cause data loss. Therefore, before installing any new software or data, users should seek the 


assistance of the Director of Planning & Development. Stoughton Utilities employees shall 


contact the Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor. Users must never install 


downloaded software to networked storage devices without the assistance and approval of 


appropriate personnel. 


1.9. F. Virus scanning software must not be disabled, modified, uninstalled, or otherwise 


inactivated. If you are uncertain as to whether the workstation you are using is capable of 


detecting viruses automatically, or you are unsure whether the data has been adequately 


checked for viruses, you should contact the Director of Planning & Development. Stoughton 


Utilities employees shall contact the Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor. 


1.9. G. Anyone receiving an electronic communication in error shall notify the sender 


immediately. The communication may be privileged, confidential and/or exempt from 


disclosure under applicable law. Such privilege and confidentiality shall be respected. 


1.10. ENCRYPTION 


1.10. A. Employees should not assume electronic communications are totally private. 


Employees with a business-need to encrypt messages (e.g., for purposes of safeguarding 


sensitive or confidential information) shall submit a written request to their supervisor and the 


Department Head. When authorized to use encryption by their supervisor and the Department 


Head, employees shall use encryption
-
 software supplied to them by the Director of Planning 


& Development. Stoughton Utilities employees shall contact the Utilities Office and 


Information Systems Supervisor. 


1.10. B. Employees who use encryption on files stored on a City computer must provide their 


supervisor with a sealed hard copy record (to be retained in a secure location) of all of the 


passwords and/or encryption keys necessary to access the files. 


1.11. POLICY VIOLATIONS 


Failure to comply with this policy may result in disciplinary action. Disciplinary action may involve a 


verbal or written warning or, in serious cases, termination of employment. 


Employees who abuse the privilege of City-facilitated access to electronic media or services risk having 


the privilege removed for themselves and possibly other employees; are subject to diScipline, up to and 


including termination; and may be subject to civil liability and criminal prosecution. 


SECTION 2: E-MAIL POLICY 


The City provides its employees with the capability to send and receive electronic mail (e-mail) so they 


can work more productively. The messages sent and received on the e-mail system, like memos, purchase 


orders, letters, and other documents created by employees in the course of their workday, are the property 


of the City and may constitute public records. This section of the electronic communications policy 


explains rules governing the appropriate use of e-mail and sets out the City's rights to access messages on 


the e-mail system. 


2.1 ACCESS TO EMPLOYEE E-MAIL 


2.1. A. Authorized access to employee e-mail by other employees or outside individuals 


includes, but is not limited to, the following: 


i. Access by the Director of Planning & Development during the course of system 


4 







maintenance or administration; 


ii. Access approved by the employee, the employee's supervisor, or an officer of the 


City when there is an urgent business reason. to access the employee's mailbox - for 
example, if an employee is absent from the office and the supervisor has reason to believe 


that information relevant to the day's business is located in the employee's mailbox; 


iii. Access approved by the employee's Supervisor, the Director of Planning & 


Development, or an. officer of the City when there is reason to believe the employee is 


using e-mail in violation of the City's policies; 


iv. Access approved by the Director of Planning & Development or the City Attorney 


in response to the City's receipt of a court order or request from law enforcement 


officials for disclosure of an employee's e-mail messages. 


2.1. B. Except as otherwise noted herein, e-mail should not be used to communicate sensitive 


or confidential information The confidentiality of any message should not be assumed. E-mail 


can easily be forwarded to third parties. Even when a message is erased, it is still possible to 


retrieve and read that message. 


2.2. PASSWORDS 


Each user accesses the e-mail system by means of a personal log-in name and password, which will be 


selected by the employee and kept on file with the Department Head and Director of Planning & 


Development or the Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor. 


2.2. A. The failure to keep passwords confidential can allow unauthorized individuals to.read, 


modify, or delete e-mail messages; circulate e-mail forgeries; and download or manipulate 


files on. other systems. 


2.2. B. The practice of using passwords should not lead employees to expect privacy with 


respect to messages sent or received. The use of passwords for security does not guarantee 


confidentiality. (See Section 2.1, "Access to Employee E-mail"). 


2.2. C. Passwords should never be given out over the phone, included in e-mail messages, 


posted, or kept within public view. 


2.2. D. Employees are prohibited from disclosing their password, or those of any other employee, 


to anyone who is not an employee of the City. Employees also should not disclose their password 


to other employees, except when required by an urgent business matter (see Section 2,1.A.ii of this 


policy). 


2.3. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 


2.3. A. All employees are expected and required to protect the City's confidential information.. 


Employees shall not transmit or forward confidential information to outside individuals or 


companies without the permission of their supervisor and the Department Head. See Section 


1.10, Encryption. 


2.3. B. The City also requires its employees to use e-mail in a way that respects the 


confidential and proprietary information of others. Employees are prohibited from copying or 


distributing copyrighted material - for example, software, database files, documentation, or 


articles using the e-mail system. 


2.4. RECORD RETENTION 


5 







2.4. A. The same rules which apply to record retention for other City documents apply to e-


mail. As a general rule, e-mail is a public record whenever a paper message with the same 


content would be a public record, 


2.4. B. The specific procedures to be followed with respect to the retention of e-mail records is 


contained in Section 3: E-Mail Record Retention Policy. 


2.5. ENCRYPTION 


2.5. A. Encrypting e-mail messages or attached files sent, stored, or received on the City's e-mail 


system is prohibited except where explicitly authorized. Employees are prohibited from using or 


installing any encryption software without prior permission from the Department Head. Employees 


with a business need to encrypt messages should submit a written request to their supervisor and the 


Department Head. When authorized to use encryption by their supervisor and the Department 


Head, employees shall use encryption software supplied to them by the Director of Planning & 


Development or the Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor. 


2.5. B. Employees who use encryption on e-mail stored on a City computer must provide 


their supervisor with a sealed hard copy record (to be retained in a secure location) of all the 


passwords and/or encryption keys necessary to access the e-mail. 


2.6. E-MAIL POLICY VIOLATIONS 


Employees violating the City's e-mail policy are subject to discipline, up to and including termination. 


Employees using the e-mail system for defamatory, illegal, or fraudulent purposes and employees who 


break into unauthorized areas of the City's computer system also are subject to civil liability and 


criminal prosecution. 


SECTION 3: E-MAIL RECORD RETENTION POLICY  


3.1 PURPOSE: 


The purpose of this section of the City of Stoughton's Electronic Communications Policy is to 


emphasize that certain types of e-mail as defined in. Wis. Stats. §19.32(2) are public records. The same 


rules which apply to record retention and disclosure for other City documents apply to such records. 


3,2 REFERENCES:  


Wis. Stats. §§16.612, 19.21 et. seq., 19.32 and 


19.33. 3.3 PROCEDURES:  


3.3. A. NATURE OF E-MAIL RECORDS  


As a general rule, e-mail is a public record whenever a paper message with the same content 


would be a public record. See Wis. Stats. §19.32(2) for definition of a record. 


3.3. B. COMPONENTS OF AN E-MAIL RECORD 


The e-mail record is defined to include the message, the identities of the sender and all recipients, 


the date, and any non-archived attachments to the e-mail message. Any return receipt indicating 


the message was received by the sender is also considered to be part of the record 


3.3. C. SAVING AND INDEXING E-MAIL RECORDS  


Initially the custodian (that officer, department head, division head, or employee of the City who 


6 







keeps or is in possession of an e-mail) bears the responsibility for determining whether or not a 
particular e-mail record is a public record which should be saved and ensuring the record is 


properly indexed and forwarded for retention as a public record. E-mail which is subject to 


records retention must be saved and should be indexed so that it is linked to the related records in 


other media (for example, paper) so that a complete record can be accessed when needed. E-mail 


records to be retained shall be archived to an archivable medium, network drive, or print-out saved 


in the appropriate file. Any officer, department head, division head, or employee of the City may 


request assistance from the Legal Custodian of records (the City Clerk or the Clerk's designee, 


except that the Chief of Police is Legal Custodian of Police Department records) in determining 


whether an e-mail is a public record. 


3.3. D. RESPONSIBILITIES FOR E-MAIL RECORDS MANAGEMENT 


i. Legal Custodian. E-mail records shall be maintained by the City Clerk. 


ii. Information Services Manager. If e-mail is maintained in an on-line data base, it is the 


responsibility of the Director of Planning & Development to provide technical support for 


the Legal Custodian as needed. When equipment is updated, the Director of Planning & 


Development shall ensure that the ability to reproduce e-mail in. a readable form is 


maintained. The Director of Planning & Development shall assure that e-mail programs 


are properly set up to archive e-mail as required by the City Clerk. 


3.3. E. PUBLIC ACCESS TO E-MAIL RECORDS 


If a Department receives a request for release of an e-mail public record, the Legal Custodian 


of the record shall determine if it is appropriate for public release, in whole or in part, pursuant 


to law, consulting the City' Attorney, if necessary. As with other records, access to or 


electronic copies of disclosable records shall be provided within a reasonable time. 


3.3. F. VIOLATION 


Employees violating this policy are subject to discipline up to and including dismissal. In addition, 


violations of this policy may be referred for civil and/or criminal prosecution, where appropriate. 


SECTION 4: OTHER ELECTRONIC MEDIA 


4.1 ACCESS and AUTHORITY 


4.1. A. Each Department Head shall determine which employees in their department shall 


have access to the various media and services, based on business practices and necessity and 


which shall have authority to communicate on behalf of the City. 


4.1. B. The provisions of this Policy shall apply to the use of City-owned/provided equipment 


and/or services from home or other locations off City premises. City-owned equipment (e.g. 


lap tops) may be removed from City premises solely for City work related purposes pursuant 


to prior authorization from the Department Head. 


4.2. PARTICIPATION 1N ON-LINE FORUMS 


4.2. A. Employees should remember that any messages or information sent on City-provided 


facilities to one or more individuals via an electronic network (for example: Internet mailing lists, 


bulletin boards, and on-line services) are statements identifiable and attributable to the City. 


4.2. B. The 'City recognizes that participation in some forums might be important to the  







performance of an employee's job. For instance, an employee might find the answer to a 


technical problem by consulting members of a newsgroup devoted to the technical area. 


4.2. C. Employees shall include the following disclaimer in all of their postings to public forums: 


The views, opinions, and judgments expressed in this message are solely those of the 


author. The message contents have not been reviewed or approved by the City of 


Stoughton. 


4.2. D. Employees should note that even with a disclaimer, a connection with the City exists 


and a statement could be imputed legally to the City. 'Therefore, employees should not rely on 


disclaimers as a way of insulating the City from the comments and opinions they contribute to 


forums. Instead, employees must limit their discussion to matters of fact and avoid expressing 


opinions while using the City's systems or a City-provided account. Communications must not 


reveal confidential information and must not otherwise violate this or other City policies. 


4.2. E. Employees must receive authorization from their Department Heads prior to 


participating in an on-line forum. The employees shall be required to review the provisions of 


this section before they receive such authorization. 


4.3. SOCIAL NETWORKING 


Social media communication tools that facilitate interactive information-sharing, interoperability, and 


collaboration are useful outreach and communication tools. Commonly used social media websites 


include Facebook, Twitter, MySpace, YouTube, Flickr, Tumblr, and Linkedln. 


4.3, A. Definitions 


i. BIog:, a blog (short for web-log) is a personal online journal that is frequently 


updated and intended for general public consumption. Blogs are defined by their 


format: a series of entries typically posted to a single page in reverse-chronological 


order. Blogs generally represent the personality of the author or reflect the purpose of 


the website that hosts the blogs. Topics sometimes include brief philosophical musings, 


commentary on Internet and other social issues, and links to other sites, the author 


favors, especially those that support or reject a point being made on a post. There are 


any number of sites that act as blog-aggregatots, with which users can read updates to 


and leave comments on. the blogs of other site-users. These sites have social functions 


similar to Facebook and Twitter. 


ii. Chat room: A way of communicating by sending text messages to multiple people 


in the same chat room in real-time. The term can mean any technology ranging from 


real-time online chat over instant messaging and online forums to fully immersive 


graphical social environments. 


iii. Forum: An online discussion group where users can post comments and thoughts, 


either anonymously or as themselves, usually not in real-thne. 


iv. IM: Instant Messaging is a way of communicating one-on-one by sending text 


messages over the interact in real-time. Many social networking sites offer IM 


functions, frequently called Chat. 


v. Personal website: Website created or configured by an individual for business, 


social, or entertainment purposes. 


vi. Social networking site: A website or service that enables users to create public profiles 


within that website and form relationships with other users of the same website who 


8 







access their profile. Social networking sites can be used to describe community-based 


websites, online discussion forums, chat rooms, and other spaces accessed online or 


by cell-phone. 


vii. URL: Abbreviation of Uniform Resource Locator, the global address of documents 
and other resources on the World Wide Web, For example, http://www.google.com is the 


URL for Google: the address where Google's website can be found. 


viii. Website: Any computerized document, file, or menu accessible on the 


Internet and/or World Wide Web. 


4.3. B. City of Stoughton Sponsored Sites 


i. All City of Stoughton-utilized social networking sites shall be used in conformance 
with, and be consistent with, applicable state, federal, and local laws, regulations, and 


policies, including all information technology security policies. This includes any 


applicable records retention time periods. 


ii, City-sponsored sites are only to be accessed for City-approved purposes. 


iii, All content of City-sponsored must be work-related and professional in tone. 


iv, City-sponsored sites must comply with all relevant aspects of the City's Electronic 


Communication & Information System Policy. 


v. Employees shall not blur or combine their personal and professional lives when 


operating a City of Stoughton social networking site. 


vi. All City of Stoughton-related communication through social media outlets should 


remain professional in nature and should always be conducted in accordance with the 


City's information technology policies, practices, and expectations. Employees must not 


use City social networking sites for political purposes, to conduct private commercial 


transactions, or to engage hi private business activities. If an account is used for City 


business, the entire account, regardless of any personal views, is subject to these 


guidelines, including the collection and preservation provisions. Employees should be 


mindful that any statements made are on behalf of the City and should therefore use 


discretion when posting or commenting_ Employees should always consider whether it is 


appropriate to post an opinion, commit oneself or the department to a course of action, or 


discuss areas outside of one's expertise. Communication should include no form of 


profanity, obscenity, or copyright violation. Confidential information must not be shared, 


vii. Employees are required to: 


a. Be respectful of all individuals and communities with which they interact 


online; 


b. Be polite and respectful of other opinions, even in times of heated 


discussion and debate; 


G. Adhere to the Terms of Use, and seek to conform to the cultural and 


behavioral norms, of the social media platform being used; and 


d. Respect copyright, privacy, financial disclosure, and other applicable laws 


when publishing on social media platforms. Employees should check with 


their supervisor if they are not certain about what they can reproduce or 


disclose on social media platforms. 


9 



http://www.google.com/





viii. When creating social media accounts for City-related professional purposes that 


require individual identification, City employees should use their actual names, not 


pseudonyms. Any employee using his
.
or her name should be mindful of the following: 


a. They cannot assume privacy. Employees must only post information that 


they are authorized to disclose. 


b. They must use different passwords for different accounts (both social media 
and existing work accounts). Using the same password for all accounts increases 


vulnerability and the likelihood of all accounts being compromised. 


ix. Terms of Service 


Employees should be aware of the Terms of Service (TOS) of each particular form of 


social networking media. Each form of social networking media has its own unique TOS 


that regulates how users interact. Any employee using a form of social media on behalf of 


the City of Stoughton should consult the most current TOS in order to avoid violations. If 


the TOS contradicts the City's policy, then a decision should be made about whether_use 


of such media is appropriate. 


4.3. C. Non-City-Sponsored and Other Personal Social Networking Sites 


City employees- are allowed to have personal social networking sites under the following 


conditions: 


i. Personal sites must remain personal in nature and be used to share personal opinions 


and non-work related information only. Employees must maintain a distinction 


between their personal opinions and the views of the City of Stoughton. 


ii. Personal sites should include a disclaimer that the opinions being expressed are 


those of the individual and not of the City of Stoughton. A disclaimer is required 


when employees: 


a. refer to work done by or for the City; 


b. comment on any City-related issues; or 


c. provide a link to a City website. 


See Section 4.2.0 for an example of the appropriate language to be used in disclaimers. 


iii. Personal sites may not be accessed using the City's technology. - 


iv. Personal sites may not be accessed during work time, excluding authorized break 


or unpaid meal periods. 


v. Personal sites may not contain statements that are vulgar or obscene, are 
threatening, or which violate the City's unlawful harassment policy. 


vi. Employees should never use their City of Stoughton email account or password in 


conjunction with a personal social networking site. 


4.3. D. Public Records 


Like e-mail, communication via City-related social networking websites constitutes a public 


l 0  







record. This means that both the posts of the employee administrator and any feedback by 


other employees or non-employees, including citizens, will become part of the public record. 


The City of Stoughton is subject to the State of Wisconsin Open Records Law, and as such all 


communication posted is subject to disclosure and retention. 


4.3. E. Records Management and Preservation 


Communication through City of Stoughton-related social media is considered a public record. 


i. All comments or posts made to City of Stoughton account walls or pages are 


public, not private. 


ii. Employees who receive messages through the private message services offered by 


some social media sites shoUld encourage users to contact them at a public email 


address maintained by the City. For private messages that employees do receive, they 


should be treated as constituent e-mails and; therefore, as public records. 


The City of Stoughton assumes responsibility for public records and complies with the 


retention period set forth in the retention requirements schedule, The City assigns its own 


schedule of collection and retention for social networking websites which it maintains. 


1 I  







E-MAIL AND ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS POLICIES 


EMPLOYEE NOTICE 


As an employee of the City of Stoughton (the "City"), I recognize and understand that the City's electronic 


communication systems are provided for conducting the City's business. However, City policy does permit 


some limited, occasional, or incidental personal use of the equipment and services under certain 


circumstances. I understand that all equipment, software, messages and files are the exclusive property of 


the City. I agree not to use the electronic communication systems in a way that is disruptive, offensive, or 


harmful to others or to the City. I agree not to use pass codes, access a file or retrieve any stored 


communication other than where authorized. I agree not to copy, send or receive confidential information 


without prior authorization from my immediate supervisor and the Department Head. 


I am aware that the City reserves and will exercise the right to review, audit, intercept, access and disclose 


all matters on the .City's electronic communications systems at any time. I am aware that the City may 


exercise these rights with or without employee notice, and that such access may occur during or after 


working hours. I am aware that use of a Jog-in name and password do not guarantee confidentiality, 


guarantee privacy or restrict the City's right to access electronic communications. I am aware that 


violations of this policy may subject me to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge from 


employment, as well as civil and/or criminal liability. 


I acknowledge that I have read and that I understand the City's policies regarding e-mail and electronic 


communications, and have been afforded an opportunity to ask questions regarding the policy. I also 


acknowledge that I have read and that I understand this notice. 


Employee Name (PLEASE PRINT) 


Employee Signature Date 


Supervisor Signature Date 


Copy for Employee 


1 9  








Council Approved June 28, 2018 


 


              FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


                        Assistant 


Director of Finance  


 
City of Stoughton 


REPORTS TO: Director of Finance/Comptroller   PAY GRADE: 17     FLSA: E  


 


 
SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
The purpose of this exempt position is to be accountable for the overall planning, 
organizing, controlling and directing of the financial activities of the City 


departments including Utilities; as well as providing backup for all customer 
accounting with the Assistant Utilities Director and general accounting functions 
and information processing, supervise City Treasurer functions as required by 


State Statutes 62.09(9) and City ordinances,  perform critical accounting and 
fiscal management functions in accordance with City and Utilities goals and 


objectives.  
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties 
of this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of 


duties. Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of 
this position. 


 


 Direct the operation of an accounting system in a manner 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and 
practices and in sufficient detail to produce accurate cost, financial 
and statistical data for both management and statutory 
requirements. 


 Under the direction of the Director of Finance/Comptroller, implement 
and maintain a proper set of internal controls. 


 Under the direction of the Direction of Finance/Comptroller, develop 
financial systems, policies and procedures to ensure effective fiscal 
management. 


 Under the direction of the Director of Finance/Comptroller, develop and 
maintain optimal investment, borrowing and other funding strategies. 


 Under the direction of the Director of Finance/Comptroller, research grant 
funding opportunities for Utility divisions and customers, prepare grant 
applications and maintain post-compliance monitoring and reporting. 


Formatted: Centered


Deleted: /City Treasurer 


Deleted: coordination of


Deleted: carry out


Deleted: ¶


Performs City Treasurer functions as required 


by State Statutes 62.09(9) and City 


ordinances.¶


¶


Except as provided in s. 66.0608, the treasurer 


shall collect all city, school, county, and state 


taxes, receive all moneys belonging to the city 


or which by law are directed to be paid to the 


treasurer, and pay over the money in the 


treasurer's hands according to law.¶


¶


The treasurer shall keep a detailed account in 


suitable books in such manner as the council 


shall direct. The treasurer shall keep in a 


separate book an account of all fees received. 


The treasurer's books shall at all reasonable 


times be open to inspection.¶


¶


The treasurer shall each month at the first 


meeting of the council and as often as it shall 


require make to the council a verified report of 


moneys received and disbursed and of the 


condition of the treasury. Ten days before each 


regular city election the treasurer shall file in 


the clerk's office a full and minute verified 


report of moneys received and disbursed, tax 


certificates, vouchers and other things of 


pecuniary value in the treasurer's custody, and 


of all transactions of the treasurer's office from 


the date of the preceding like report.¶


Deleted: <#>The treasurer may receive no 


compensation except the salary fixed by the 


council. If the treasurer sells property for 


the payment of taxes, the treasurer may 


also receive any fee a constable would 


receive for this service. The treasurer shall 


deposit all other fees he or she collects into 


the treasury at the end of each day.¶


¶


Except as provided in s. 66.0608, the 


treasurer shall deposit immediately upon 


receipt thereof the funds of the city in the 


name of the city in the public depository 


designated by the council. Such deposit may 


be in either a demand deposit or in a time 


deposit, maturing in not more than one 


year. Failure to comply with the provisions 


hereof shall be prima facie grounds for 


removal from office. When the money is so 


deposited, the treasurer and the treasurer's 


bonders shall not be liable for such losses as 


are defined by s. 34.01 (2). The interest 


arising therefrom shall be paid into the city 


treasury.¶







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


 Oversees and reviews the preparation of the tax roll special charges, 
delinquencies and assessments and reviews final tax roll for submission to 
the County Treasurer. 


 Oversees all necessary regulatory financial reporting requirements for the 
both the City and Utilities to ensure accuracy and timeliness.  


 Assists with the preparation of salary and benefit data for the annual 
budget process in conjunction with the Director of Human Resources & 
Risk Management. 


 Assists with other areas of the City and Utilities annual budget process as 
directed by the Director of Finance/Comptroller.  


 Prepares and maintain short, mid and long-term cash flow forecasts. 


 Directs, coordinates, and supervises processing of payroll. 


 Manages relationships with financial consultants. Review service fees, 
negotiate and develop contracts with service providers. 


 Oversees the purchase card program. 


 Oversees treasury management operations, online banking and fraud 
protection programs. 


 Under the direction of the Utilities Committee and Director perform 
electric, water and wastewater retail rate analyses, develop rate structures 
that allow sufficient revenue recovery and obtain necessary local and 
regulatory approvals. 


 
 Do internal auditing and produce and cause a complete financial 


statement certified audit by a third party CPA firm. 


 Prepares and interprets financial statements, cost reports, and 
statements of receipts and expenditures on a monthly basis for use 
by the Finance Committee, Utilities Committee, Common Council and 
other City personnel. 


 Participate in required Finance Committee, Utility Committee and 
Common Council meetings. Prepare monthly status reports as well as 
other scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports. 


 Ensures volunteer organizations follow prescribed city financial policies. 


 Provide support for personnel management functions including 
recruitment. 


 Provides back up for duties of the Director of Finance/Comptroller and 
Assistant Utilities Director.  


QUALIFICATIONS: 


Deleted: . 


Deleted: <#>Prepares tax roll for submission 


to the County Treasurer.¶


Prepares Statement of Taxes, Levy Limit 


worksheets and Expenditure Restraint 


reporting


Formatted: Font color: Black, Expanded by  0.15 pt


Deleted: ; verifies salary and benefit data for 


inclusion in the City payroll database


Deleted: Administer 


Deleted: Direct 


Deleted: <#>Assist in Utilities development 


and implementation of public education 


programs to promote a positive Utility 


environment in the City and service territory.¶


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.29", Hanging:  0.25", Space


Before:  12.1 pt, Line spacing:  Exactly 13.1 pt, Outline


numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet +


Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:  0.2" + Indent at:  0.5", Font


Alignment: Baseline, Tab stops:  0.3", Left


Deleted: Complies with all required Safety 


Programs.¶


¶







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 


Education/Training/Certifications  


 Bachelor's degree in Business Administration, Accounting or financial 
management. Preference for a Certified Public Accountant. Minimum of 
five-seven years of management or project management related to 
financial/accounting operations, preferably in the municipal environment. 


 The ability to independently initiate analysis and solve a variety of 
accounting and fiscal issues from both long-term and daily operational 
perspectives. 


 Significant knowledge of computer hardware and software used in the 
municipal environment, including experience with automated accounting, 
financial and billing systems. Advanced user of Microsoft applications 
(Word, Excel, Access, and PowerPoint) preferred. 


 Knowledge of municipal accounting and auditing including enterprise 
funds; considerable knowledge of Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
(GAAS); considerable knowledge of Generally Acceptable Accounting 
Principles (GAAP). 


 Knowledge on new Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
standards and ability to implement and maintain books in accordance as 
such. 


 Familiarity with State and Federal rules and regulations regarding utility 
systems. 


 Proven success and experience in teambuilding and collaboration and 
experience with effective supervisory/management and human resource 
principles and techniques. 


 Understanding of effective customer service principles and techniques. 


 Comprehensive knowledge of Utility electric, wastewater and water 
systems. 


 


Language Skills 
 


 Requires the ability to perform complex data analysis including the ability 
to analyze and interpret an extensive variety of technical information and 
governmental regulations, audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


 
 Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established 


criteria to define consequences and develop alternatives. 
 


 Ability to define problems collects data, establish facts, and draw 
conclusions. Good decision-making and problem solving skills. 


 







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


 Ability to promote teambuilding and maintaining good working relationships 
within all City Departments including Utilities. 


 


 Ability to develop and maintain good working relationships with 
contractors, community members, elected officials, and regulatory staff. 


 


 Requires the ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to persuade, 
convince, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 


regarding the application of policies, procedures and standards to specific 
situations. 


 


 Requires the ability to utilize a wide variety of reference, descriptive, 
advisory and/or design data and information such as financial statements, 
billing reports, reports, ledgers, journals, summaries, rate applications, 


budgets, manuals/texts, codes, accounting systems, procedures and non-
routine correspondence. 


 


 Ability to communicate effectively with the City Council, Mayor, Director of 
Finance/Comptroller, Utilities Director, Utilities Operations Superintendent 


and all City personnel including Utilities personnel, other City department 
Leadership, Finance Committee, Utilities Committee, auditors, technical 
support contractors and the public verbally and in written form. 


 
Mathematical Skills 
 


 Ability to add, subtract, multiply, divide, calculate decimals and percents, 
and make use of the principles of descriptive statistics. 


 
 Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial 


and performance data. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as 
supervision, managing, leading, teaching, directing, planning, 
coordinating and controlling. 


 
 Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles 


for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


 Requires the ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and 
creativity required in situations involving the direction, control and 
planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


 
Supervisory Skills 


 
 Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others. 
 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, 
discipline, and discharge of employees.  







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


 
Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Position  


Functions: 
 
 Requires the ability to operate, maneuver, and/or provide simple but continuous 


adjustment on equipment, machinery, and tools such as a computer and 
other office machines, and/or materials used in performing essential 
functions. 


 
 Requires the ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing 


coordinated movements such as typing. 


 


 Tasks involve the ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light 
work, but which may involve some lifting, carrying, pushing, and pulling of 
objects weighing five to ten pounds. 


 


 Requires the ability to recognize and identify similarities or differences 
between characteristics of colors, shapes and sounds associated with job-
related objects, materials and tasks. 


 


 
Environmental Adaptability: 
 


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where 
exposure to environmental factors may cause discomfort and poses a 


limited risk of injury. 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations 







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 
current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 
 


 
Position Description Acknowledgement 
 
 
 


Employee's Signature                                        Date 
 


 








Council Approved June 28, 2018 


 


              FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


                        Assistant 
Director of Finance  


 
City of Stoughton 


REPORTS TO: Director of Finance/Comptroller   PAY GRADE: 17     FLSA: E  
 


 
SUMMARY OF POSITION: 


The purpose of this exempt position is to be accountable for the overall planning, 
organizing, controlling and directing of the financial activities of the City 


departments including Utilities; as well as providing backup for all customer 
accounting with the Assistant Utilities Director and general accounting functions 
and information processing, supervise City Treasurer functions as required by 


State Statutes 62.09(9) and City ordinances,  perform critical accounting and 
fiscal management functions in accordance with City and Utilities goals and 


objectives.  
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties 
of this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of 


duties. Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of 
this position. 


 


 Direct the operation of an accounting system in a manner 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and 
practices and in sufficient detail to produce accurate cost, financial 
and statistical data for both management and statutory 
requirements. 


 Under the direction of the Director of Finance/Comptroller, implement 
and maintain a proper set of internal controls. 


 Under the direction of the Direction of Finance/Comptroller, develop 
financial systems, policies and procedures to ensure effective fiscal 
management. 


 Under the direction of the Director of Finance/Comptroller, develop and 
maintain optimal investment, borrowing and other funding strategies. 


 Under the direction of the Director of Finance/Comptroller, research grant 
funding opportunities for Utility divisions and customers, prepare grant 
applications and maintain post-compliance monitoring and reporting. 







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


 Oversees and reviews the preparation of the tax roll special charges, 
delinquencies and assessments and reviews final tax roll for submission to 
the County Treasurer. 


 Oversees all necessary regulatory financial reporting requirements for the 
both the City and Utilities to ensure accuracy and timeliness.  


 Assists with the preparation of salary and benefit data for the annual 
budget process in conjunction with the Director of Human Resources & 
Risk Management. 


 Assists with other areas of the City and Utilities annual budget process as 
directed by the Director of Finance/Comptroller.  


 Prepares and maintain short, mid and long-term cash flow forecasts. 


 Directs, coordinates, and supervises processing of payroll. 


 Manages relationships with financial consultants. Review service fees, 
negotiate and develop contracts with service providers. 


 Oversees the purchase card program. 


 Oversees treasury management operations, online banking and fraud 
protection programs. 


 Under the direction of the Utilities Committee and Director perform 
electric, water and wastewater retail rate analyses, develop rate structures 
that allow sufficient revenue recovery and obtain necessary local and 
regulatory approvals. 


 
 Do internal auditing and produce and cause a complete financial 


statement certified audit by a third party CPA firm. 


 Prepares and interprets financial statements, cost reports, and 
statements of receipts and expenditures on a monthly basis for use 
by the Finance Committee, Utilities Committee, Common Council and 
other City personnel. 


 Participate in required Finance Committee, Utility Committee and 
Common Council meetings. Prepare monthly status reports as well as 
other scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports. 


 Ensures volunteer organizations follow prescribed city financial policies. 


 Provide support for personnel management functions including 
recruitment. 


 Provides back up for duties of the Director of Finance/Comptroller and 
Assistant Utilities Director.  


QUALIFICATIONS: 







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


Education/Training/Certifications  


 Bachelor's degree in Business Administration, Accounting or financial 
management. Preference for a Certified Public Accountant. Minimum of 
five-seven years of management or project management related to 
financial/accounting operations, preferably in the municipal environment. 


 The ability to independently initiate analysis and solve a variety of 
accounting and fiscal issues from both long-term and daily operational 
perspectives. 


 Significant knowledge of computer hardware and software used in the 
municipal environment, including experience with automated accounting, 
financial and billing systems. Advanced user of Microsoft applications 
(Word, Excel, Access, and PowerPoint) preferred. 


 Knowledge of municipal accounting and auditing including enterprise 
funds; considerable knowledge of Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
(GAAS); considerable knowledge of Generally Acceptable Accounting 
Principles (GAAP). 


 Knowledge on new Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
standards and ability to implement and maintain books in accordance as 
such. 


 Familiarity with State and Federal rules and regulations regarding utility 
systems. 


 Proven success and experience in teambuilding and collaboration and 
experience with effective supervisory/management and human resource 
principles and techniques. 


 Understanding of effective customer service principles and techniques. 


 Comprehensive knowledge of Utility electric, wastewater and water 
systems. 


 


Language Skills 
 


 Requires the ability to perform complex data analysis including the ability 
to analyze and interpret an extensive variety of technical information and 
governmental regulations, audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


 
 Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established 


criteria to define consequences and develop alternatives. 
 


 Ability to define problems collects data, establish facts, and draw 
conclusions. Good decision-making and problem solving skills. 


 







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


 Ability to promote teambuilding and maintaining good working relationships 
within all City Departments including Utilities. 


 


 Ability to develop and maintain good working relationships with 
contractors, community members, elected officials, and regulatory staff. 


 


 Requires the ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to persuade, 
convince, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 


regarding the application of policies, procedures and standards to specific 
situations. 


 


 Requires the ability to utilize a wide variety of reference, descriptive, 
advisory and/or design data and information such as financial statements, 
billing reports, reports, ledgers, journals, summaries, rate applications, 


budgets, manuals/texts, codes, accounting systems, procedures and non-
routine correspondence. 


 


 Ability to communicate effectively with the City Council, Mayor, Director of 
Finance/Comptroller, Utilities Director, Utilities Operations Superintendent 


and all City personnel including Utilities personnel, other City department 
Leadership, Finance Committee, Utilities Committee, auditors, technical 
support contractors and the public verbally and in written form. 


 
Mathematical Skills 


 
 Ability to add, subtract, multiply, divide, calculate decimals and percents, 


and make use of the principles of descriptive statistics. 


 
 Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial 


and performance data. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as 
supervision, managing, leading, teaching, directing, planning, 
coordinating and controlling. 


 
 Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles 


for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


 Requires the ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and 
creativity required in situations involving the direction, control and 
planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


 
Supervisory Skills 


 
 Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others. 
 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, 
discipline, and discharge of employees.  







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


 
Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Position  


Functions: 
 
 Requires the ability to operate, maneuver, and/or provide simple but continuous 


adjustment on equipment, machinery, and tools such as a computer and 
other office machines, and/or materials used in performing essential 
functions. 


 
 Requires the ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing 


coordinated movements such as typing. 


 


 Tasks involve the ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light 
work, but which may involve some lifting, carrying, pushing, and pulling of 
objects weighing five to ten pounds. 


 


 Requires the ability to recognize and identify similarities or differences 
between characteristics of colors, shapes and sounds associated with job-
related objects, materials and tasks. 


 


 
Environmental Adaptability: 


 
 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where 


exposure to environmental factors may cause discomfort and poses a 


limited risk of injury. 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations 







Council Approved June 28, 2018 


to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 
current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 
 


 
Position Description Acknowledgement 
 


 
 


Employee's Signature                                        Date 
 


 








Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


  


Finance Department 


City Treasurer 


 
 


City of Stoughton 


PAY GRADE:  X                                                                                  FLSA: N 
 
REPORTS TO:  Assistant Finance Director 


 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
The purpose of this position is be accountable for the overall treasury, accounts payable, 
and cash management functions of the City. This position will perform City Treasurer duties 


as prescribed in State Statute 62.09(9) and City Ordinances. 
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of this 


position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other duties 
may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 


 Manages the receipt of all funds for the City. Codes receipts according to City’s chart 


of accounts as appropriate. Reconciles deposits to the general ledger. Provides back 
up support to Finance Accounting Specialist on daily bank deposit processes. 


 Oversees the City’s cash flow needs and requirements. Reconciles monthly bank 
statements for the City. Transfer monies between funds to insure adequate 
monthly and daily balances.  


 Manages banking relationships and programs under the direction of the 
Finance Director and Assistant Finance Director. Initiates wires, ETF, and ACH 


transactions. Manages fraud protection programs.  


 Manages the entire tax collection process, including filing related reports, 
processing and reconciling payments received and transmitting collected 


amounts to taxing jurisdictions. Represents the City in all things property tax 
related.  


 Coordinates requests to City Council for refunded or rescinded property taxes.  
Monitors chargeback requirements and activities. Stays abreast of state 
statute requirements as related to property tax matters. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


 Assists in budget preparation, research and financial reporting. 


 Monitors, manages and processes debt service payments. Receipts bond proceeds 
per the Finance Director’s guidance.  


 Issues quarterly payment reminders for room tax and monitors collections. 


 Answers inquiries from the public and others regarding property assessments, real 


estate and personal property tax information and other City treasury information. 


 Prepares delinquent personal property tax reports. Maintains delinquency 
information until collection. Reviews delinquency information and reports to Finance 


Director.  


 Assist with monthly account reconciliation, processing of journal entries, and annual 


audit preparation. 
 


 Compiles personal property deletion information. Assists assessor with personal 


property deletion and supporting documentation. Relays deletion information to 
Finance Director and Assistant Finance Director. 


 Manages account payable functions, including final approval or processing of 
payments. Ensures proper documentation is attached to payment requests.  


 Prepares City 1099’s to vendors and related reports. Sends out and tracks W-9 


information. 


 Answers inquiries from other departments regarding invoices, statements and 


payments made or pending; consults with vendor regarding problems and 
questions.  


 Provides support for the purchase card program. 


 Provides backup and assistance for payroll processing. 


 Processes and reconciles payroll taxes and deduction disbursements to various 


agencies, including state and federal reporting. 


 Contact person for the accounting software for department heads and other users of 
the program.  Maintains the database and its users and security access.  Adds new 


general ledger accounts under direction of the Finance Director and Assistant 
Finance Director. 


 Point of contact for department heads regarding financial statements, budgets and 
expense reconciliation. 


 Prepares monthly financial reports for Department Heads. Prepares monthly financial 


reports for multiple volunteer organizations. Prepares other reports as requested. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


 Provides backup to the Department as needed and all other duties as assigned. 
 
 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications  
 


 Associates Degree in accounting, finance, or business and three to five years of related 
experience or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent 


knowledge, skills, and abilities related to financial management, treasury, accounting or 
purchasing. 


  


Language Skills 
 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the 
relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to 
compare, count, differentiate, measure, assemble, copy and record and transcribe data 


and information. Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 
 


 Ability to persuade, convince, and/or train others, including the ability to act in a lead 
worker capacity. Ability to advise and interpret how to apply policies, procedures and 
standards to specific situations. 


 
 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as financial statements, 


tax bills, bank statements, tax payment records, annual budget, budget reports, job 
applications, daily receipts, balance sheets, journal entries, computer software operating 
manuals, tax collection manual, State statutes, procedures, guidelines and non-routine 


correspondence. 
 


 Ability to communicate orally and in writing with City staff, residents and vendors. 
 
 


Mathematical Skills 
 


 Ability to calculate and understand percentages, fractions, decimals, interest, discount, 
and ratios. 


 
 
Judgement and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 
 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified 


work activities. 
 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations 


involving the evaluation of information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria, as 
opposed to criteria which are clearly measurable. 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including computer terminal, 


typewriter, telephone, fax machine, calculator/adding machine and photocopier. 


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements 


such as rapid keyboard use. 


 Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work, but which may involve 
some lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. Ability to sustain prolonged visual 


concentration. 
 


Environmental Adaptability: 
 
 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 


environmental factors such as repetitive computer keyboard use, irate individuals and 
intimidation may cause discomfort and poses a limited risk of injury. 


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with applicable 
state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified 
individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to 


discuss potential accommodations with the City.   


 








Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


 


 


PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT 


          Troll Beach Lifeguard 
 


City of Stoughton 


SALARY RANGE:                           GRADE:                             FLSA: E 
 


REPORTS TO:  PARKS & RECREATION SUPERVISOR 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 
Under the general supervision of the Troll Beach Supervisor and Troll Beach Head 


Guard(s), the Lifeguard position at Troll Beach is responsible for maintaining the 
safety of the patrons in and around the pool. They must communicate and enforce all 
regulations and pool rules in a personable and professional manner.  


 
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


 Ensures the health, safety and welfare of those using the Troll Beach pool facilities. 


 Supervises the activities of the pool patrons by enforcing rules and regulations. 
 Performs pool maintenance and facility cleaning duties. 
 Responds to emergency situations; administers first aid and primary care as 


needed. 
 Assists the public as necessary by providing program information, answering public 


inquiries, handling or referring complaints, posting notices and interpreting pool 
rules and policies.  


 Attends all mandatory in-service trainings and staff meetings as required. 


 
 


QUALIFICATIONS: 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


Education/Training/Certifications 
 Must be at least 16 years of age. 


 Must have current certification in Red Cross Lifeguard/First Aid/ CPR/AED 
 Must be able to effectively communicate with the general public and pool staff. 
 Must be willing to work flexible hours including nights and weekends. 


 







Council Approved ENTER DATE 


 


 
Knowledge & Abilities 


 Excellent customer service skills – this position serves as an ambassador for 
the City and must engage patrons and participants in a respectful, professional 
and positive demeanor.  


 Must be able to withstand frequent standing, walking and sitting. 
 Must have working knowledge of the principles and practices of Lifeguard 


Training, CPR/AED and First Aid. 
 Proficient swimming ability and attentiveness to visual and audible cues for 


recognition and identification of swimmers in distress or in the process of 
unsafe behaviors. 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 





